Freedom of Information Manager
Ministry of Defence Police
Palmer Pavilion,

Building 666,

RAF Wyton, Huntingdon,
Cambs, PE28 2EA

E-mail: MDP-FOI-DP@mod.gov.uk
Our Ref: eCase: FOI 2024/17417

RFI: 148/24

Date: 01 October 2024

Dear I
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 2000: MINISTRY OF DEFENCE POLICE: DEEPFAKE PORN

We refer to your email dated 16 September 2024 to the Ministry of Defence Police (MDP), which
was acknowledged on 17 September 2024.

We are treating your email as a request for information in accordance with the Freedom of
Information Act 2000 (FOIA 2000).

In your email you requested the following information:

| am writing to you under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 to request the following
information:

Please could you provide me with the data requested:

1. For each of the months February, March, April, May, June, July and August 2024, how
many reports did your police force receive alleging the offence of sharing explicit images
or videos that have been digitally manipulated to look like someone else without their
consent, commonly known as ‘fake porn’ or ‘deepfake porn’ (covered by the Online Safety
Act 2023)?

2. Given there could be multiple reports about one individual, | am also asking the following
guestion. For each of the months February, March, April, May, June, July and August 2024,
how many individuals did your police force receive allegations about relating to the offence
of sharing explicit images or videos that have been digitally manipulated to look like
someone else without their consent, commonly known as ‘fake porn’ or ‘deepfake porn’
(covered by the Online Safety Act 2023).

3. For each of the months February, March, April, May, June, July and August 2024, how
many people were charged under the Online Safety Act with the offence of sharing explicit
images or videos that have been digitally manipulated to look like someone else without
their consent, commonly known as ‘fake porn’ or ‘deepfake porn’?

4. Given one individual could be charged with multiple offences, | am also asking the
following question. For each of the months February, March, April, May, June, July and
August 2024, how many charges were made by your police force under the Online Safety
Act of the offence of sharing explicit images or videos that have been digitally manipulated



to look like someone else without their consent, commonly known as ‘fake porn’ or
‘deepfake porn’?

5. Among the reports of victims of ‘deepfake porn’ for each of the months February, March,
April, May, June, July and August 2024, how many were under the age of 187?

6. Among the reports of victims of ‘deepfake porn’ for each of the months February, March,
April, May, June, July and August 2024, how many were under the age of 10?

For clarity, for the questions above, | am asking for charges under the following law,
Section 66B, Sexual Offences Act:

(1) A person (A) commits an offence if —

(a) A intentionally shares a photograph or film which shows, or appears to show, another
person (B) in an intimate state,

(b) B does not consent to the sharing of the photograph or film, and

(c) A does not reasonably believe that B consents.

Full legislation is here: https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/42/section/66B

7. For each of the months August, September, October, November and December 2023 and
January and February 2024, how many reports did your police force receive alleging the
offence of deepfake sexual abuse under other legislation (before the Online Safety Act 2023
came into force) — e.g. communication offences or harassment legislation?

8. Given there could be multiple reports about one individual, | am also asking the following
guestion. For each of the months August, September, October, November and December
2023 and January and February 2024, how many individuals did your police force receive
allegations about relating to the offence of deepfake sexual abuse under other legislation
(before the Online Safety Act 2023 came into force)?

9. For each of the months August, September, October, November and December 2023 and
January and February 2024, how many people were charged with the offence of deepfake
sexual abuse under other legislation (before the Online Safety Act 2023 came into force)?
10. Given one individual could be charged with multiple offences, | am also asking the
following question. For each of the months August, September, October, November and
December 2023 and January and February 2024, how many charges were made by your
police force of the offence of deepfake sexual abuse under other legislation (before the
Online Safety Act 2023 came into force)?

If it is not possible to provide the information requested due to the information exceeding
the cost of compliance limits identified in Section 12, please prioritise questions in number
order. Questions 1-6 should be prioritised over questions 7-10.

| would like the information to be emailed to me in electronic form.

If you need any further information from in order to deal with my request, please call me on
07535605442.

If you are encountering practical difficulties with complying with this request, please
contact me as soon as possible (in line with your section 16 duty to advise and assist
requesters) so that we can discuss the matter and if necessary | can modify the request.

If it is necessary for any reason to redact any information, please redact the minimum
necessary and send me the rest of the material, explaining the legal grounds for each
redaction.

A search for information has now been completed and the MDP does hold information in scope of
your request.
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If you are not satisfied with the handling of your request, or the content of this response, you can
request an independent internal review by contacting the Information Rights Compliance team,
Ground Floor, MOD Main Building, Whitehall, SW1A 2HB (e-mail CIO-FOI-IR@mod.gov.uk).
Please note that any request for an internal review should be made within 40 working days of the
date of this response.

If you remain dissatisfied following an internal review, you may raise your complaint directly to the
Information Commissioner under the provisions of Section 50 of the Freedom of Information Act.
Please note that the Information Commissioner will not normally investigate your case until the
MOD internal review process has been completed. The Information Commissioner can be
contacted at: Information Commissioner’s Office, Wycliffe House, Water Lane, Wilmslow,
Cheshire, SK9 5AF. Further details of the role and powers of the Information Commissioner can
be found on the Commissioner's website at https://ico.org.uk/.

Yours sincerely

MDP Secretariat and Freedom of Information Office



